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TARA K. MCGRATH 
United States Attorney 
MICHELLE L. WASSERMAN 
California Bar No. 254686 
CARLING DONOVAN 
New York Bar 

FILED PATRICK SWAN 
California Bar No. 306526 
Assistant United States Attorneys 
Federal Office Building APR 1 6 2024 
880 Front Street, Room 6293 
San Diego, California 92101-8893 CLERK U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
Telephone: (619) 546-8431 SOUTHERN DISTRICT O CALIFORNIA 

BY DEPUTY Email: rnichelle.wasserman@usdoj.gov 

Attorneys for United States of America 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

12 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

13 

Case No. 24-cr-00759-TWR 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

V. 

CAMBRIDGE INTERNATIONAL 
SYSTEMS, INC., 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the plaintiff, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

through its counsel, TARA K. MCGRATH, United States Attorney, Michelle L. 
20 

21 

22 

Wasserman and Carling Donovan, Assistant United States Attorneys, and Defendant 

CAMBRIDGE INTERNATIONAL SYSTEMS, INC. ("CAMBRIDGE"), with the advice 

and consent of Claire Rauscher and Sarah Motley Stone, counsel for CAMBRIDGE as 
23 

24 

25 

26 

follows.: 

A. The Charge 

I 

THE PLEA 

27 
Defendant agrees to waive Indictment and plead guilty to an Information, charging 

28 
Defendant with conspiracy to commit bribery in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. 

I CAMBRIDGE Plea Agreement Def. Initial( o® I 
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1 In addition, Defendant consents to the forfeiture allegations of the Information. 

2 Defendant agrees the attached forfeiture addendum is incorporated by reference and shall 

3 govern forfeiture in this case. 

4 B. Prosecution of Additional Counts 

5 In exchange for Defendant's plea of guilty, the United States agrees that it will not 

6 file additional criminal charges against Defendant for the conduct described in the attached 

7 Statement of Facts or based on information now lmown to the United States related to the 

8 offense conduct described in the attached Statement of Facts provided that Defendant does 

9 not breach the plea agreement, or the guilty plea entered pursuant to this plea agreement is 

10 not set aside for any reason. If Defendant breaches this agreement or the guilty plea is set 

11 aside, Section XN below shall apply. 

12 
Nothing in this agreement, however, shields Defendant from prosecution for any act 

13 
or omission not now lmown to the United States or committed after the date of this 

14 
agreement. The United States remains free to prosecute Defendant for perjury, false 

15 
statements, or obstruction of justice if the Defendant commits such an offense after 

16 
Defendant signs this plea agreement. Should Defendant commit perjury, give false 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

statement, or commit obstruction of justice, the United States, at its sole discretion, will be 

free to prosecute Defendant for that offense, move to set aside this plea agreement, and/or 

be relieved of its obligations under this agreement. 

II 

NATURE OF THE OFFENSE 

A. ELEMENTS EXPLAINED 

The offense to which Defendant is pleading guilty has the following elements: 

1. There was an agreement between two or more persons to commit 
the crime ofbribery, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 
Section 201; 

2 
Def. Initial~ 



Case 3:24-cr-00759-TWR     Document 6     Filed 04/16/24     PageID.14     Page 3 of 27
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2 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

B. 

2. Defendant became a member of the conspiracy knowing of at 
least one of its objects and intending to help accomplish it; and 

3. One of the members of the conspiracy performed at least one 
overt act for the purpose of carrying out the conspiracy. 

CORPORATE CRIMINAL LIABILITY 

Defendant acknowledges that as a corporation it is responsible for the acts of its 

agents or employees, done within the scope of their authority. Defendant acknowledges 

that the acts of a corporation's agents or employees are within the scope of their authority 

if those acts are done, at least in part, on the corporation's behalf or for its benefit in the 

performance of the agent's general duties. Defendant agrees that it is responsible for the 

acts of its officers, employees and agents, which form the factual basis for the charge to 

which Defendant is agreeing to plead guilty. 

C. ELEMENTS UNDERSTOOD AND ADMITTED - FACTUAL BASIS 

Defendant has fully discussed the facts of this case with counsel. Defendant agrees 

that it, through its officers, directors, and employees, committed each element of the crime 

and admits that there is a factual basis for this guilty plea. The facts laid out in the attached 

Statement of Facts are true and undisputed and had this case gone to trial, the United States 

would have presented evidence to prove them beyond a reasonable doubt. 

III 

PENALTIES 
20 

The crime to which Defendant is pleading guilty carries the following maximum 
21 

penalties: 
22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A. a maximum 5 years of probation; 

B. a maximum $500,000 fme, or twice the gross gain or loss resulting from the 
offense, whichever is greatest (18 U.S.C. §3571(c)(3), (d)); 

C. a mandatory special assessment of$400 percount(l8 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(B)); 
and 

D. an order of forfeiture requiring Defendant to forfeit the proceeds of the offense. 

Def. Initia@) 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

IV 

DEFENDANT'S WAIVER OF TRIAL RIGHTS AND 
UNDERSTANDING OF CONSEQUENCES 

This guilty plea waives Defendant's right at trial to: 

A. Continue to plead not guilty and require the United States to prove the 

elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt; 

B. A speedy and public trial by jury; 

C. The assistance of counsel at all stages; 

D. Confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses; 

E. Testify, present evidence, and have witnesses testify on Defendant's behalf. 

F. Not testify or have any adverse inferences drawn from the failure to testify; 

and 

G. Assert now or on appeal, any legal, constitutional, statutory, regulatory, and 

procedural rights and defenses that it may have under any source of federal or 

common law, including among others, challenges to personal jurisdiction, 

extraterritoriality, statute of limitations, venue, and the form and substance of 

the Information, including specifically any claim of multiplicity, duplicity, or 

merger. 

V 

DEFENDANT ACKNOWLEDGES NO PRETRIAL RIGHT TO BE PROVIDED 
WITH IMPEACHMENT AND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE INFORMATION 

Any information establishing the factual innocence of Defendant known to the 

undersigned prosecutor in this case has been turned over to Defendant. The United States 
23 

will continue to provide such information establishing the factual innocence of Defendant. 
24 

25 

26 

If this case proceeded to trial, the United States would be required to provide impeachment 

information for its witnesses. In addition, if Defendant raised an affirmative defense, the 

United States would be required to provide information in its possession that supports such 
27 

a defense. By pleading guilty Defendant will not be provided this information, if any, and 
28 

4 
Def.Initi~ 
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1 Defendant waives any right to this information. Defendant will not attempt to withdraw the 

2 guilty plea or to file a collateral attack based on the existence of this information. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

VI 

DEFENDANT'S REPRESENTATION THAT GUILTY 
PLEA IS KNOWING AND VOLUNTARY 

Defendant represents that: 

A. Defendant, and its officers and board of directors, has had a full opportunity to 
discuss all the facts and circumstances of this case with defense counsel and 
has a clear understanding of the charges and the consequences of this plea. By 
pleading guilty, Defendant may be giving up, and rendered ineligible to 
receive, valuable government benefits and civic rights. The conviction in this 
case may subject Defendant to various collateral consequences, including but 
not limited to revocation of probation in another case; suspension or debarment 
from government contracting; and suspension or revocation of a professional 
license, none of which can serve as grounds to withdraw Defendant's guilty 
plea. 

B. No one has made any promises or offered any rewards in return for this guilty 
plea, other than those contained in this agreement or otherwise disclosed to the 
Court. 

C. No one has threatened Defendant or Defendant's officers, employees or agents 
to induce this guilty plea. 

D. Defendant is pleading guilty because Defendant is guilty and for no other 
reason. 

VII 

AGREEMENT LIMITED TO U.S. ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

This plea agreement is limited to the United States Attorney's Office for the 

25 Southern District of California and cannot bind any other authorities in any type of matter, 

26 although the United States will bring this plea agreement to the attention of other 

27 authorities if requested by Defendant. 

28 

s 
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1 

2 

3 

VIII 
APPLICABILITY OF SENTENCING GUIDELINES 

The sentence imposed will be based on the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553. In 

4 
imposing the sentence, the sentencing judge must consult the United States Sentencing 

5 
Guidelines ("Guidelines" or "USSG") and take them into account. Defendant has discussed 

6 
the Guidelines with defense counsel and understands that the Guidelines are only advisory. 

7 
The Court may impose a sentence more severe or less severe than otherwise applicable 

8 
under the Guidelines, up to the statutory maximum. The sentence cannot be determined 

9 
until a presentence report is prepared by the U.S. Probation Office and defense counsel and 

10 
the United States have an opportunity to review and challenge the presentence report. 

11 
Defendant agrees to reguest that a presentence report be prepared. Nothing in this plea 

agreement limits the United States' duty to provide complete and accurate facts to the 
12 

district court and the U.S. Probation Office. 
13 

IX 
14 

15 
SENTENCE IS WITHIN SOLE DISCRETION OF JUDGE 

16 
This plea agreement is made pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 

17 
ll(c)(l)(B). The sentence is within the sole discretion of the sentencing judge who may 

18 
impose the maximum sentence provided by statute. It is uncertain at this time what 

19 
Defendant's sentence will be. The United States has not made and will not make any 

representation about what sentence Defendant will receive. Any estimate of the probable 
20 

sentence by defense counsel is not a promise and is not binding on the Court. Any 
21 

recommendation by the United States at sentencing also is not binding on the Court. If the 
22 

sentencing judge does not follow any or all of the parties' sentencing recommendations, 
23 

24 
and irrespective of the sentence imposed, Defendant will not withdraw its plea. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

6 
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1 

2 

3 

X 

PARTIES' SENTENCING RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. SENTENCING GUIDELINES CALCULATIONS 

4 Although the Guidelines are only advisory and just one factor the Court will consider 

5 under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) in imposing a sentence, the parties will jointly recommend the 

6 following Base Offense Level, Specific Offense Characteristics, Adjustments, Departures, 

7 and Culpability Score. The parties agree that Chapter 8 of the United States Sentencing 

8 Guidelines Manual governs the case. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1. Base Offense Level- USSG § 2Cl.l(a)(2) 
2. More than One Bribe- USSG § 2Cl.l(b)(l) 
3. Value of the Benefit- USSG § 2Cl.l(b)(2)/ 

§ 2Bl.l(b)(J) (more than $3.5 million) 

B. CULP ABILITY SCORE 

12 
+2 

+18 

1. Base Level - USSG § 8C2.5(a) 5 
2. More than 50 employees/person with substantial 

authority participated in the offense - USSG § 8C2.5(b)(4) +2 
3. Affirmative Acceptance - USSG § 8C2.5(g)(3) -1 

The total base fine calculation of 32 results in a base fine for Defendant of 

19 $30,000,000. USSG § 8C2.4(d). Defendant's Minimum and Maximum Multipliers, based 

20 on the foregoing aggregate culpability score of 6 are 1.2 and 2.4, respectively, resulting in 

21 a total fine range of $36,000,000 to $72,000,000. USSG §8C2.6. This range is limited by 

22 the statutory maximum of twice the gross gain or loss to $14,859,990.46. 

23 

24 

C. ACCEPTANCE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

Despite paragraph B above, the Government need not recommend an adjustment for 

25 Affirmative Acceptance if Defendant engages in conduct inconsistent with acceptance of 

26 responsibility including, but not limited to, the following: 

27 

28 

7 
Def. Initials ~ 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Fails to truthfully admit a complete factual basis as stated in the plea at 

the time the plea is entered, or falsely denies, or makes a statement 

inconsistent with, the factual basis set forth in this agreement; 

Falsely denies prior criminal conduct or convictions; 

Is untruthful with the Government, the Court or probation officer; or 

Breaches this plea agreement in any way. 

D. FACTUAL BASIS" AND "RELEVANT CONDUCT" INFORMATION 

The facts in the "factual basis" paragraph of this agreement are true and may be 

1 O considered as "relevant conduct" under USSG § lB 1.3 and as the nature and circumstances 

11 of the offense under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(l). 

12 

13 

14 

15 

E. PARTIES' RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING FINE/SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT/FORFEITURE 

1. Special Assessment 

The parties will jointly recommend that Defendant pay a special assessment in the 
16 amount of $400.00 to be paid forthwith at time of sentencing. 
17 

18 

19 

20 

2. Fine 

The United States will recommend that Defendant be sentenced to pay a fine at the 

low end of the advisory guideline range recommended by the Government at sentencing. 

Defendant remains free to request or recommend that the Court impose a lower fine 
21 amount, or no fine at all. 
22 3. Forfeiture 
23 Defendant consents to the forfeiture allegations of the Information and agrees to the 
24 entry of a forfeiture money judgment against it in the amount of$ 1,672,102.23. The parties 
25 further agree that the attached Forfeiture Addendum will govern Forfeiture in this matter. 
26 

27 

28 

Def. Initials® 
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1 

2 

F. PROBATION 

The parties are not recommending that the Court impose a term of probation. If the 

3 Court imposes a term of probation, Defendant will not seek to reduce or terminate early 

4 the term of probation until Defendant has served at least 2/3 of the term and has fully paid 

5 and satisfied any special assessments, fine, or criminal forfeiture judgment. 

6 XI 

7 

8 

FACTUAL ADHERENCE 

Defendant agrees that it shall not, through its present or future attorneys, board of 

9 directors, officers, or any other person authorized to speak for Defendant, or any parent 

10 company, subsidiaries, affiliates, successor entities or assignees, make any public 

11 statement, in litigation or otherwise, contradicting Defendant's acceptance of 

12 responsibility, as set forth herein and/or in the Statement of Facts. Any such contradictory 

13 statement shall constitute a breach of this plea agreement and Defendant thereafter would 

14 be subject to prosecution. Defendant agrees that the decision of whether any public 

15 statement by any such person contradicting Defendant's acceptance of responsibility or a 

16 fact contained in the Statement of Facts will be imputed to Defendant for the purpose of 

17 detenninine whether Defendant has breached this plea agreement shall be at the sole 

18 discretion of the United States. Should the United States decide that a public statement 

19 made by any such person contradicts in whole or in part Defendant's acceptance of 

20 responsibility or a factual statement in the Statement of Facts, the United States shall notify 

21 Defendant. Defendant may avoid a breach of this plea agreement by publicly repudiating 

22 such statement within two business days after receipt of such written notification. This 

23 paragraph does not apply to any statement made by an individual employed by Defendant 

24 in the course of any criminal, regulatory, or civil case initiated against such individual, 

25 unless such individual is speaking on Defendant's behalf. 

26 

27 

28 

9 
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1 

2 

3 

XII 

COOPERATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

Defendant agrees to continue cooperating fully with the United States, and with any 

4 other agency designated by the United States, in investigating Defendant and any of its 

5 present and former officers, employees, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors in all 

6 matters. Defendant agrees that its cooperation pursuant to this paragraph shall include, but 

7 not be limited to, the following: 

8 A. Complete, timely, and truthful disclosure of all non-privileged information as 

9 may be requested by the United States with respect to the activities of Defendant and its 

1 O subsidiaries and affiliates, and its present and former officers, employees, consultants, 

11 contractors, and subcontractors, concerning all matters inquired into by the United States; 

12 B. Assembling, organizing, and producing (in any method and format requested 

13 by the United States) any and all non-privileged relevant documents, records, electronic 

14 data, or other tangible evidence in Defendant's possession, custody, or control concerning 

15 all matters inquired into by the United States. Whenever such data is in electronic format, 

16 Defendant shall provide access to such data and assistance in operating computer and other 

17 equipment as necessary to retrieve data. This obligation shall not include production of 

18 materials covered by the attorney-client privilege or the work product doctrine; 

19 C. Using Defendant's best efforts to facilitate the availability and cooperation of 

20 its present and former officers, employees, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors to 

21 provide information and/or testimony as requested by the United States, including, but not 

22 limited to, sworn testimony in any proceeding, including before a federal grand jury or in 

23 federal trials, as well as interviews with domestic law enforcement and regulatory 

24 authorities; 

25 D. Providing testimony, certification, or other information to identify or establish 

26 the original location, authenticity, or other evidentiary foundation necessary to admit into 

27 evidence documents in any proceeding; 

28 

10 
Def. Initia( C:'s£) 
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1 E. Identifying witnesses who, to Defendant's knowledge, may have material 

2 information regarding the matters under investigation. With respect to any information, 

3 testimony, document, record, or other tangible evidence provided to the United States 

4 pursuant to this plea agreement, Defendant consents to any and all disclosure to other 

5 government agencies of such materials as the United States, in its sole discretion, deems 

6 appropriate; 

7 F. Bringing to the attention of the United States: (i) all allegations of criminal 

8 conduct by Defendant or any of its employees acting with the scope of their employment 

9 related to the United States' investigation, as to which Defendant's board of directors, 

IO officers, senior management, or United States legal and compliance personnel are aware; 

11 (ii) any administrative, regulatory, civil, or criminal proceeding or investigation of 

12 Defendant relating to the investigation of the United States; and 

13 G. Committing no crimes under the federal laws of the United States subsequent 

14 to the execution of this plea agreement. 

15 

16 

17 

XIII 

DEFENDANT WAIVES APPEAL AND COLLATERAL ATTACK 

Defendant waives all rights to appeal and to collaterally attack every aspect of the 

18 conviction and sentence. This waiver includes, but is not limited to, any argument that the 

19 statute of conviction or Defendant's prosecution is unconstitutional and any argument that 

20 the facts of this case do not constitute the crime charged. The only exceptions is that 

21 Defendant may collaterally attack the conviction or sentence on the basis that Defendant 

22 received ineffective assistance of counsel. If Defendant appeals, the Government may 

23 support on appeal the sentence actually imposed. 

24 XIV 

BREACH OF THE PLEA AGREEMENT 25 

26 Defendant and Defendant's attorneys know the terms of this plea agreement and 

27 shall raise, before the sentencing hearing is complete, any claim that the United States has 

28 

11 
Def. Initial~ 
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1 not complied with this plea agreement. Otherwise, such claims shall be deemed waived 

2 (that is, deliberately not raised despite awareness that the claim could be raised), cannot 

3 later be made to any Court, and if later made to a Court, shall constitute a breach of this 

4 plea agreement. 

5 Defendant breaches this agreement if Defendant violates or fails to perform any 

6 obligation under this agreement. The following are non-exhaustive examples of acts 

7 constituting a breach: 

8 1. Failing to plead guilty pursuant to this agreement; 

9 2. Failing to fully accept responsibility as established in Section X, 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

paragraph C, above; 

Failing to appear in court; 

Attempting to withdraw the plea; 

Failing to truthfully admit a complete factual basis as set forth in the 

Statement of Facts at the time the plea is entered or falsely denying or 

making any statement inconsistent with the Statement of Facts; 

Failing to abide by any court order related to this case; 

Appealing (which occurs if a notice of appeal is filed) or collaterally 

attacking the conviction or sentence in violation of Section X1 of this 

plea agreement; 

Failing to fully cooperate, as set forth in Section XII; 

Failing to timely and fully comply with the Forfeiture Addendum; 

10. Engaging in additional criminal conduct. 

If Defendant breaches this plea agreement, Defendant will not be able to enforce any 

24 provisions, and the United States will be relieved of all its obligations under this plea 

25 agreement. For example, the United States may proceed to sentencing but recommend a 

26 different sentence than what it agreed to recommend above. Or the United States may 

27 pursue any charges including those that were dismissed, promised to be dismissed, or not 

28 

12 
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1 filed as a result of this plea agreement, (Defendant agrees that any statute of limitations 

2 relating to such charges is tolled indefinitely as of the date all parties have signed this 

3 agreement; Defendant also waives any double jeopardy defense to such charges). In 

4 addition, the United States may move to set aside Defendant's guilty plea. Defendant may 

5 not withdraw the guilty plea based on the United States' pursuit of any such remedy for 

6 Defendant's breach. 

7 Defendant agrees that the decision whether conduct or statements of any individual 

8 acting on behalf or speaking on behalf of Defendant will be imputed to Defendant for the 

9 purpose of determining whether Defendant has lmowingly violated any provision of this 

10 plea agreement shall be in the sole discretion of the United States. Should the United States 

11 determine that Defendant has breached the plea agreement, the United States will provide 

12 written notice to Defendant of the alleged breach. 

13 Additionally, if Defendant breaches this plea agreement: (i) any statements made by 

14 Defendant's representative, under oath, at the guilty plea hearing (before either a 

15 Magistrate Judge or a District Judge); (ii) the Statement of Facts; and (iii) any evidence 

16 derived from such statements, are admissible against Defendant in any prosecution of, or 

17 any action against, Defendant. This includes the prosecution of the charge(s) that is the 

18 subject of this plea agreement or any charge(s) that the prosecution agreed to dismiss or 

19 not file as part of this agreement, but later pursues because of a breach by the Defendant. 

20 Additionally, Defendant lmowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently waives any argument 

21 that the statements and any evidence derived from the statements should be suppressed, 

22 cannot be used by the Government, or are inadmissible under the United States 

23 Constitution, any statute, Rule 410 of the Federal Rules of Evidence, Rule 11 ( t) of the 

24 Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, and any other federal rule. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

13 
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1 

2 

3 

XVI 

CONTENTS AND MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT 

This plea agreement embodies the entire agreement between the parties and 

4 supersedes any other agreement, written or oral. No modification of this plea agreement 

5 shall be effective unless in writing, signed by all parties. There are no agreements, 

6 representations, or understandings between the parties in this case, other than those 

7 explicitly set forth in this plea agreement and the attachments and addendum hereto. 

8 XVII 

9 

10 

DEFENDANT AND COUNSEL FULLY UNDERSTAND AGREEMENT 

By signing this plea agreement, Defendant certifies that Defendant and its officers, 

11 managers, and board of directors has read it and discussed its terms with defense counsel 

12 and fully understands its meaning and effect. Defendant acknowledges that it has accepted 

13 this plea agreement and decided to plead guilty because it is in fact guilty of the charged 

14 offense. 

15 By virtue of the resolution of Defendant's board of directors (attached hereto as 

16 Attachment A), affirming that the board of directors has authority to enter into this plea 

17 agreement and has: (1) reviewed the Information in this case, the Statement of Facts, and 

18 the proposed plea agreement or has been advised of the contents thereof; (2) consulted with 

19 legal counsel in connection with the matter; (3) voted to enter into this plea agreement and 

20 to admit to the attached Statement ofFacts; ( 4) voted to authorize Defendant to plead guilty 

21 to the charge specified in the Information; voted to authorize payment of the criminal fme; 

22 and (5) voted to authorize the corporate officer identified below to execute this plea 

23 agreement and all other documents necessary to carry out the provisions of this plea 

24 agreement, Defendant agrees that a duly authorized corporate officer for Defendant shall 

25 appear on behalf of Defendant and enter the guilty plea and will also appear for the 

26 imposition of sentence. 

27 

28 

14 
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XVIII 1 

2 DEFENDANT SATISFIED WITH COUNSEL 

3 Defendant, through its officers, managers, and board of directors, has consulted with 

4 counsel and is satisfied with counsel's representation. This is Defendant's independent 

5 opinion, and Defendant's counsel did not advise Defendant, or any of its officers, 

6 managers, and board of directors, about what to say in this regard. 

XIX 

SUCCESSOR LIABILITY 

7 

8 

9 This plea agreement shall bind Defendant, its subsidiaries, affiliated entities, 

IO assignees, and its successor corporation if any, and any other person or entity that assumes 

11 the obligations contained herein. No change in name, change in corporate or individual 

12 control, business reorganization, change in ownership, merger, change of legal status, sale 

13 or purchase of assets, divestiture of assets, or similar action shall alter Defendant's 

14 obligations under this plea agreement. Defendant shall not engage in any action to seek to 

15 avoid the obligations set forth in this plea agreement. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 DATED 3/28/24 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
DATED: '3\2.q,\,02-'-\ 

26 

27 

28 

TARA K. MCGRATH 
United States Attorney 

~~ 
Michelle L. Wasserman 
Carling Donovan 
Patriclc Swan 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 

Clair auscher 
Sarah otley Stone 
Defense Counsel 

15 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

~\1.1\1~ 
DATED 

:·1,,;1·1! 

Chris Sentimore 
President/Board Member 
Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 
Defendant 

16 
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1 

2 

3 

COMPANY OFFICER'S CERTIFICATE 

I, C.hr,;.. Se"'+,~~l"'l..-certify that I am the <?c~-. ,~-t"+ for Defendant, 

4 
Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 

5 
I have read this agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with outside 

6 
counsel for Cambridge International Systems, Inc. I understand the terms of the foregoing 

7 
agreement, and the attachments and addendum hereto, and voluntarily agree, on behalf of 

8 
Cambridge International Systems, Inc., to each of its tenns. Before signing this agreement, 

9 
I consulted outside counsel for Cambridge International Systems, Inc. Counsel fully 

10 
advised me of Cambridge International Systems, Inc.' s rights, of possible defenses, of the 

11 
relevant Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this 

12 
agreement. 

13 
I have further carefully reviewed the terms of this agreement, and the attachments 

14 
and addendum hereto, with Cambridge International Systems, Inc.' s board of directors. I 

15 
have caused Cambridge International Systems, Inc.' s outside counsel to advise its board of 

16 
directors fully of Cambridge International Systems, Inc.' s rights, of possible defenses, of 

17 
the relevant Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the consequences of entering into 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

this agreement. 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 

17 
Def. Initials@) 
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I I am further authorized to acknowledge on behalf Cambridge International Systems, 

2 Inc. that these documents fully set forth Cambridge International Systems, Inc.' s agreement 

3 with the United States, and that no additional promises or representations have been made 

4 to Cambridge International Systems, Inc. by any officials of the United States in connection 

5 with the disposition of this matter, other than those set forth in this agreement, and the 

6 attachments and addendum hereto. Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or, to 

7 my knowledge, any person authorizing this agreement on Cambridge International 

8 Systems, Inc.' s behalf, in any way to enter into this agreement. I am satisfied with outside 

1
~ counsel's representation in this matter. ~.- ~.----" 

11 DATED: 3\ '2.. 1} 2. ~ C ~~ 
Chris Sentrmo 
President/Board Member 12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 
Defendant 

18 
Def. Initials_@) 
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1 

2 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL 

I am counsel for Cambridge International Systems, Inc. in the matter covered by this 

3 agreement. In connection with such representation, I have examined relevant Cambridge 

4 International Systems, Inc. documents and have discussed the terms of this agreement with 

5 Cambridge International Systems, Inc.'s board of directors. I have fully advised them of 

6 Cambridge International Systems, Inc.'s rights, of possible defenses, of the relevant 

7 Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this agreement. 

8 Based on our review of the foregoing materials and discussions, I am of the opinion 

9 that C\.wf6 ~-\tl"l\o r-e-- , the representative of Cambridge International Systems, 

1 O Inc. has been duly authorized to enter into this agreement on Cambridge International 

11 Systems, Inc.' s behalf; that this agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed, 

12 and delivered on Cambridge International Systems, Inc.'s behalf; and that this agreement 

13 is a valid and binding obligation of Cambridge International Systems, Inc. To my 

14 knowledge, Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 's decision to enter into this agreement, 

15 based on the authorization of the board of directors of Cambridge International Systems, 

16 Inc., is an informed and voluntary one. 

17 

18 DATED: 

19 c1aireRaucer 
Attorney for Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

19 
Def. Initial@ 
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Statement of Facts 

Defendant Cambridge International Systems, Inc. ("CAMBRIDGE" or 
"Company") is headquartered in Arlington, Virginia and is a contractor of services 
to the government and other entities. It also has offices in Charleston, South 
Carolina and Tampa, Florida, among others. 

Russell Thurston (charged elsewhere) ("Thurston") was hired in 2013 as the 
Vice President of Defense and Intelligence at CAMBRIDGE. Thurston handled the 
defense and intelligence business line which involved U.S. government contracts. 
Thurston ran these government contracts out of the Charleston, South Carolina 
offices from 2014 until 2021, when he was terminated. In 2019, Thurston was 
promoted to Executive Vice President of Advanced Technologies and Services 
Division and continued to oversee U.S. government contracts. 

Employee-2 worked as a Program Manager at CAMBRIDGE, under the 
direction of Thurston. 

From 2006-2019, James Soriano (charged elsewhere) ("Soriano") was an 
employee at the Naval Information Warfare Center ("NIWC"), previously known as 
the Space and Naval Warfare Systems Center ("SPAWAR"), in San Diego, 
California where he worked as an engineer and project lead. NIWC was a command 
of the United States Navy, a branch of the United States Department of Defense 
("DoD"), which was a Department of the United States Government. In this 
capacity, Soriano was a public official, as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 201. Soriano was 
also certified as a Contracting Officer Representative (COR). As a COR, Soriano 
had the responsibility to approve contractor invoices, conduct contract performance 
reviews, and oversee contractor performance among other official duties. In his role 
at NIWC, Soriano had the ability to influence the award of defense contracts. 

Individual-2 had his own consulting business in Tampa, Florida. From 
approximately December 2014 to 2019, Individual-2 worked for CAMBRIDGE as 
consultant and was supervised by Thurston. Individual-2 shared information 
between Soriano and Thurston and CAMBRIDGE. 

Liberty Gutierrez ( charged elsewhere) purported to work full time as a Senior 
Management Analyst at CAMBRIDGE from approximately April 2017 through 
2019. Gutierrez did little to no work for CAMBRIDGE. While working for 
CAMBRIDGE, Gutierrez gave half of her monthly salary, or approximately $2,000 
per month, in cash to Soriano. At the same time Gutierrez was purportedly working 
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full time for CAMBRIDGE, she also had full time jobs at two other defense 
contractors as well as a full-time job at a real estate and mortgage company in San 
Diego, California. 

Beginning in or before June 2014, and continuing through at least October 
2019, Russell Thurston and Employee-2 acting as agents for CAMBRIDGE agreed 
with James Soriano, Individual-2 and others to commit bribery. Specifically, 
Thurston and Employee-2 acting as agents of CAMBRIDGE along with Individual-
2, agreed to directly or indirectly, corruptly give, offer, and promise things of value 
to Soriano, a public official, specifically jobs for Soriano's family and friends, meals, 
and a ticket to a premier sporting event, with the intent to influence Soriano in the 
performance of official acts and to induce Soriano to do or omit to do acts in 
violation of his lawful duties. 

As part of the conspiracy and as part of the stream of benefits to Soriano 
CAMBRIDGE' s employees gave various things of value to Soriano, all of which 
were overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy. CAMBRIDGE, through its 
employees, did so corruptly, that is with the intent to influence an official act by 
Soriano, or to induce Soriano to do or omit to do an act in violation of his lawful 
duty, as opportunities arose. Specifically, CAMBRIDGE's employees paid for the 
following meals for Soriano: 

a) On January 26, 2017, Thurston took Soriano to lunch at Shino Sushi & Kappo 
in San Diego, CA, totaling $72.19. Thurston expensed the meal to 
CAMBRIDGE. 

b) On January 27, 2017, Employee-2 took Soriano to lunch at Coasterra in San 
Diego, CA, totaling $88.25. Employee-2 expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE 
as a business meal. 

c) On March 8, 2017, Employee-2 took Soriano and another Government 
employee to dinner at Bahama Breeze in Virginia Beach, Virginia, totaling 
$85.86. Employee-2 chose Bahama Breeze at Soriano's specific request. 
Employee-2 expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE as a business meal. 

d) On June 12, 2017, Thurston took Soriano to lunch at Rockin Baja Lobster 
Coastal Cantina in San Diego, California, totaling $53 .33. Thurston (ixpensed 
the meal to CAMBRIDGE as "business development." 

.-,,., 
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e) On January 10, 2018, Soriano attended a CAMBRIDGE holiday party and 
dinner for San Diego based employees at Coasterra Restaurant in San Diego, 
California. CAMBRIDGE paid a total of $637.67 for the event. Thurston 
approved the expense report for the event as the "Primary Supervisor" and 
"Project Manager." 

f) On February 8, 2018, -while in San Diego for AFCEA West, Thurston took 
Soriano, Individual-2 and another CAMBRIDGE employee to dinner at Island 
Prime restaurant in San Diego, California, totaling $697.12. Thurston 
expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE as a "business dinner." 

g) On June 5, 2018, Thurston took Soriano to dinner at Charley's Steak House 
in Tampa, Florida, totaling $908.43. Thurston expensed the dinner to 
CAMBRIDGE as a business meal. 

h) On October 24, 2018, Thurston took Soriano to dinner at the Grant Grill, 
inside the U.S. Grant Hotel in San Diego, CA, totaling $89.43. Thurston 
expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE as "business development." 

i) On November 14, 2018, Employee-2 took Soriano, another Government 
employee and Individual-2 to dinner at Gordon Biersch Brewery in Virginia 
Beach, VA, totaling $109.26. Employee-2 expensed the meal to 
CAMBRIDGE. 

j) On February 13, 2019, two CAMBRIDGE employees took Soriano and 
Liberty Gutierrez out to dinner and drinks at Bencotto Italian Kitchen, in San 
Diego, California, at a total cost of $362.01. The employees expensed the 
meal to CAMBRIDGE. Thurston approved the expense report as the 
employee's "primary supervisor'' and as a "project manager." 

k) On March 5, 2019, Thurston took Soriano and three other CAMBRIDGE 
employees to dinner at Buca di Beppo in San Diego, California, at the specific 
request of Soriano, totaling $201.05. Thurston expensed the meal to 
CAMBRIDGE. 

1) On October 15, 2019, Thurston and Employee-2 took Soriano out to lunch 
with three other CAMBRIDGE employees at Coasterra in San Diego, CA, 
totaling $137.83. Thurston expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE. 
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m) On October 15, 2019, Thurston took Soriano to dinner with four other 
Cambridge employees at Barleymash in San Diego, CA, totaling $389.29. 
Thurston expensed the meal to CAMBRIDGE. 

In addition, as a thing of value and an overt act in furtherance of the conspiracy, on 
July 17, 2018, Soriano attended the Baseball All-Star game in Washington, DC with 
Employee-2 using a ticket purchased by CAMBRIDGE and given to him by 
Thurston. Soriano did not pay or provide reimbursement for the ticket. Soriano's 
ticket cost $2,113.59. 

As additional overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy, Thurston, as an agent of 
CAMBRIDGE, ensured that Soriano's family and friends received jobs at 
CAMBRIDGE as things of value to Soriano and at Soriano's specific request. 
Specifically: 

a) On June 12, 2014, Soriano requested that CAMBRIDGE give a consulting job 
to a longtime friend, Individual-2. On or about December 2, 2014, Thurston 
ensured that Individual-2 was hired as a consultant by CAMBRIDGE earning 
$80/hour. Individual-2 remained at CAMBRIDGE as a consultant at 
Soriano's specific request through approximately July 2019. 

b) On June 16, 2014, Soriano requested that CAMBRIDGE give a family 
member of Soriano's a job. Soriano provided CAMBRIDGE with a 
description for the position via email. Thurston interviewed the family 
member, and ensured he was hired by CAMBRIDGE initially in a part time 
remote position based in San Diego, California. After the family member 
graduated from college, in May 2015, Thurston ensured that the family 
member was hired by CAMBRIDGE as a full-time remote employee. 
Soriano's relative remained employed full time at CAMBRIDGE through 
2018. 

c) On April 6, 2016, Soriano asked Thurston if CAMBRIDGE would give a job 
to another friend. That same day Thurston reached out to Soriano's friend, 
and on May 2, 2016, Soriano's friend was hired at CAMBRIDGE as a 
consultant. 

d) In February 2017, Thurston and Soriano jointly developed a pos1tlon 
specifically for Liberty Gutierrez, a long-time friend of Soriano at 
CAMBRIDGE. This position allowed Gutierrez to work remotely in San 
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Diego as CAMBRIDGE had no office in San Diego. On February 9, 2017, 
Thurston sent Soriano Gutierrez's job description for the position which was 
called "Senior Management Analyst" for his approval. Soriano forwarded the 
position to Gutierrez. On the same date, Thurston sent Gutierrez an email 
asking when she would like to start. Soriano forwarded that email to Gutierrez 
as well allowing her to determine her start date. 

e) On March 21, 2017, Cambridge officially offered Gutierrez a job as a Senior 
Management Analyst, with a start date of April 3, 2017 with an annual salary 
of $77,000 a year. Gutierrez was provided with a laptop, 2 monitors and an 
IP telephone which were shipped to her home in San Diego, California. 

:f:) Gutierrez did minimal work for CAMBRIDGE. Soriano assisted Gutierrez in 
completing her yearly performance self-appraisals for CAMBRIDGE. 
Gutierrez had no day-to-day supervision at CAMBRIDGE. During the 
conspiracy, CAMBRIDGE paid Gutierrez a total of$178,460 between 2017 
and 2019. 

In return for this stream of benefits and in furtherance of the conspiracy Soriano 
agreed to perform official acts; to exert pressure on other officials to perform official 
acts; and to advocate before and advise other officials, knowing and intending that 
such advocacy and advice would form the basis for their official acts; all to advance 
CAMBRIDGE' s business interests with regards to Department of Defense contracts, 
task orders, and contracting, as questions, matters, and controversies relating to that 
business were brought to Soriano's attention, and as opportunities arose. Soriano 
additionally agreed to do or omit to do acts in violation of his lawful duties. 
Specifically: 

a) Soriano supported CAMBRIDGE with the September 26, 2014, award of 
Task Order HHSP233201400191W (the "191W Task Order") on the Chief 
Information Officer-Solutions and Partners 3 Government Wide Acquisition 
Contract ("GW AC"). The procurement was a competitive procurement 
through the Department of Health and Human Services Program Support 
Center ("PSC"). The task order was to provide systems engineering support 
to include design, engineering, integration, configuration management and 
testing of the Undersea Enterprise Network (UEN) and Nuclear Command, 
Control and Communications (NC3) systems for SPA WAR Systems Center 
Pacific (SSC PAC). The task order had a one-year base period of performance • 
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and four one-year option periods. Soriano served as COR of the task order 
during the base year of performance, option year one, and option year two. 

b) After the 191W Task Order was awarded, Soriano approved a series of 
"projects" on the Task Order, that increased the amount of work done by 
CAMBRIDGE on the Task Order. For example, on September 29, 2015, 
Soriano emailed PSC asking if $1.2 million could be added to 
CAMBRIDGE's 191W task order for "USN Data Centers." On or about 
September 30, 2015, Soriano forwarded Thurston an email from PSC that 
requested a Statement of Work for the $1.2 million of work, with the text 
"FYI!!!!" Thurston replied, "We are on it." On that same date, PSC issued 
Modification 3 to the 191W Task Order, adding $1.2 million in funding to the 
191W Task Order for the Data Center project. 

c) As a result ofSoriano's assistance in placing work on the 191W Task Order, 
the Government ultimately obligated $32,700,466.49 on the 191W Task 
Order, at a total profit of $2,444,839.84 to CAMBRIDGE. 

d) On February 13, 2017, shortly after Thurston and Soriano began discussions 
relating to Liberty Gutierrez's employment at CAMBRIDGE, Thurston 
reached out to Soriano to see if he would agree to take over the development 
of a task order, that Thurston had nicknamed C5ISR 2.0. Soriano agreed to do 
so. 

e) On March 20, 2017, Thurston instructed another CAMBRIDGE employee to 
send Individual-2 an exclusive "Teaming Agreement". On March 21, 2017, 
CAMBRIDGE officially offered Liberty Gutierrez a job as a Senior 
Management Analyst, starting April 3, 2017, earning approximately $77,000 
per year, and working from San Diego. The Company did so at Thurston's 
direction. A few days later, on March 24, 2017, the official competitive 
Request for Proposal ("RFP") was released for the C5ISR 2.0 task order under 
number C-38521-DV. The documents for that procurement were drafted by 
CAMBRIDGE employees and required that the bidding contractor have an 
engineering and logistics facility "within 25 miles of 1 Innovation Dr, 
Hanahan, SC 29410," even though the contract was supposed to be a 
SP AW AR contract, managed out of San Diego. 
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f) On April 14, 2017, CAMBRIDGE submitted its proposal for RFP C-38521-
DV. Although Thurston knew that CAMBRIDGE employees had drafted the 
procurement documents, CAMBRIDGE affirmed in the proposal that "our VP 
of Defense and Intelligence Solutions reviewed the details of this TO for 
conflicts" and that the Company was "not aware of any actual or potential 
[Organizational Conflicts of Interest] that might prevent ethical participation 
in the C5ISR [Task Order]." CAMBRIDGE was the only bidder on RFP C-
38521-DV. 

g) On June 30, 2017, PSC awarded CAMBRIDGE the C5ISR 2.0 Task Order, 
HHSP233201700143W (the "143WTask Order"), with a total potential value 
of approximately $343,306,613.68. The task order was to provide Command, 
Control, Communications, Computers and Combat Systems (C5) Intelligence, 
Surveillance, and Reconnaissance (ISR) support and project services. The 
143W Task Order had a base period of performance of July 3, 2017 through 
July 2, 2018, and four one-year option periods. Soriano served as COR of the 
task order. The contract ended in July 2019. 

h) After the 143W Task Order was awarded, Soriano approved a series of 
"projects" on the 143W Task Order, increasing the amount of work done by 
CAMBRIDGE on the Task Order. On some projects CAMBRIDGE handled 
the majority of the work, on others, the Company passed through the majority 
of the work to subcontractors. In all, Soriano was involved in the approval 
and oversight of more than 70 projects on the 143W Task Order from various 
Department of Defense commands and agencies. As a result ofSoriano's role 
on the 143W Task Order, the Government ultimately obligated 
$100,591,083.32 on the 143W Task Order, and paid CAMBRIDGE 
$83,636,447.17 for its work on the 143W Task Order. For the work that was 
paid by the Government, CAMBRIDGE made a total estimated profit of 
$4,985,155.39. 

i) In October 2018, after learning that PSC would likely be shutting down the 
143W Task Order to new work, Soriano worked with Thurston to develop 
alternative contract vehicles to ensure that CAMBRIDGE kept the work slated 
for the 143W Task Order. Between October 2018 and September 2019, 
Soriano allowed Thurston and other CAMBRIDGE employees to draft 
procurement documents for him, including Performance Work Statements, 
Request for Proposals, and Independent Government Cost Estimates, among 
other documents for competitive procurements and the Justification and 
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Approval Exception to Fair Opportunity, justifying sole sourcing efforts to 
CAMBRIDGE. Thurston and Soriano worked together to remove document 
properties on these documents so that PSC or other Government commands 
would not know CAMBRIDGE's involvement in drafting the documents. 

In June 2019, PSC shut down all outside assisted acquisitions and put a hold on 
payment of certain work that had already been completed by various contractors, 
including CAMBRIDGE for whom over $13 million dollars remains unpaid for 
completed, accepted, and invoiced work. CAMBRIDGE admits and agrees that the 
total profit on the 191W Task Order and the paid portions of the 143W Task Order 
was $7,429,995.23. 
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3 

4 

t-lLED 
I APR 1 6 2024 I 

CLERK U.S. DISTRICT COURT 
:~UTHERN DISTRICT OF CAUFORN 

United States v. Cambridge International Sys ems, ., DEPUT 

Case No. 24-cr-00759-TWR 

FORFEITURE ADDENDUM 

Defendant's conviction will include forfeiture. This forfeiture addendum is 

5 incorporated into and part of Defendant's plea agreement, and the additional terms and 

6 warnings below apply. 

7 A. Penalty. 

8 In addition to the penalties in the plea agreement, federal law states that the Defendant 

9 must forfeit to the United States any property, real and personal, which constitutes or is 

10 derived from proceeds traceable to the violation to which it is pleading guilty, to wit, 

11 conspiracy to commit bribery of a public official. 

12 B. Property Subject to Forfeiture. In addition to pleading guilty to the 

13 Information, as set forth in Section I of the main agreement, Defendant consents to the 

14 forfeiture allegations of the Information and agrees to forfeit, via entry of a money judgment 

15 against Defendant, the amount of$ 1,672,102.23, which shall be included in the judgment 

16 in this case. Defendant recognizes and agrees the United States will record the judgment 

17 against it when Defendant is sentenced, regardless of Defendant making payment on the 

18 judgment. 

19 Defendant agrees to make monthly payments on the judgment starting no later than 

20 April 30, 2024, which initial payment shall be in an amount not less than $50,000. Monthly 

21 payments shall continue for the 60 month period thereafter. Payments shall first be applied 

22 to accrued interest, and thereafter to principal which shall accrue at the federal judgment 

23 interest rate. Defendant may at any time, pay the full amount of the judgment. Attached 

24 hereto is Defendant's projected payment schedule. It is a condition of default of the plea 

25 agreement for Defendant to fail to timely pay the judgment, entitling the United States to 

26 take all actions available to it. 

27 C. Bases of Forfeiture. Defendant acknowledges that the forfeiture in the amount 

28 of$ 1,672,102.23 against it represents the moneys it received from the offense and is subject 
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1 to forfeiture to the United States as proceeds of illegal conduct in violation of Title 18, 

2 United States Code, Sections 201 and 371, and subject to forfeiture to the United States 

3 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 98l(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 246l(c). 

4 D. Immediate Entry ofan Order of Forfeiture. Defendant consents and agrees to 

5 the immediate entry of an order of forfeiture upon entry of the guilty plea. Defendant further 

6 agrees that upon entry of the order of forfeiture, such order will be considered final as to 

7 defendant. Defendant agrees to immediately withdraw any claims to property directly or 

8 indirectly related to the criminal conduct seized in connection with this case in any pending 

9 administrative and civil forfeiture proceeding, and consents to the forfeiture of all properties 

10 seized in connection with this case to the United States. Defendant agrees to execute any 

11 and all documents requested by the Government to facilitate or complete the forfeiture 

12 process. Defendant further agrees not to contest or to assist any other person or entity in 

13 contesting the forfeiture of the property seized in connection with this case. Contesting or 

14 assisting others in contesting the forfeiture shall constitute a material breach of the plea 

15 agreement, relieving the Government of all its obligations under the agreement including 

16 but not limited to its agreement to recommend an adjustment for Affirmative Acceptance. 

17 Defendant further agrees that the forfeiture judgment imposed by the Court will be (i) 

18 subject to immediate enforcement, and (ii) submitted to the Treasury Offset Program so that 

19 any federal payment or transfer of returned property the Defendant receives may be offset 

20 and applied to the outstanding balance on the forfeiture judgement. Defendant waives all 

21 notices with respect to the Treasury Offset Program and waives all rights to contest any and 

22 all offsets. Defendant waives all demand for payment of the forfeiture judgment and waives 

23 all notices for substitution of property to collect the full amount of the judgment. 

24 E. Entry of Orders of Forfeiture and Waiver of Notice. Defendant consents and 

25 agrees to the entry of orders of forfeiture for such property and waives the requirements of 

26 Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of the forfeiture in the 

27 charging instrument, announcement of the forfeiture at sentencing, and incorporation of the 

28 forfeiture in the judgment. Defendant acknowledges that Defendant understands that the 

2 Def. Initials (@ 
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1 forfeiture of assets is part of the sentence that may be imposed in this case and waives any 

2 failure by the Court to advise Defendant of this, pursuant to Rule 11 (b )(1 )(J), at the time the 

3 Court accepts the guilty plea. 

4 F. Waiver of Constitutional and Statutory Challenges. Defendant further agrees 

5 to waive all constitutional and statutory challenges in any manner (including direct appeal, 

6 habeas corpus, or any other means) to any forfeiture carried out in accordance with this 

7 agreement on any grounds, including that the forfeiture constitutes an excessive fine or 

8 punishment. Defendant agrees to take all steps as requested by the United States to pass 

9 clear title to forfeitable assets to the United States, and to testify truthfully in any judicial 

10 forfeiture proceeding. 

11 G. Agreement Survives Defendant; No Forfeiture Abatement. Defendant agrees 

12 that the forfeiture provisions of this plea agreement are intended to, and will, survive 

13 Defendant, notwithstanding the abatement of any underlying criminal conviction after the 

14 execution of this agreement. The forfeitability of any particular property pursuant to this 

15 agreement shall be determined as if Defendant had survived, and that determination shall 

16 be binding upon Defendant's heirs, successors and assigns until the agreed forfeiture, 

17 including any agreed money judgment amount, is collected in full. 

18 H. Substitute Assets/Collection of Forfeiture. Defendant acknowledges and 

19 agrees that the forfeiture in this case includes entry of a personal money judgment against 

20 Defendant, and that interest shall accrue on the judgment from the date of entry of the Order 

21 of Forfeiture in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f) and 28 U.S.C. § 1961. Defendant 

22 agrees that the United States may take all actions available to it to collect the full amount of 

23 the judgment, including enforcement of the judgment against substitute assets as provided 

24 in 21 U.S.C. § 853(p) and actions available under the Federal Debt Collections Procedure 

25 Act if Defendant fails to make timely payment of the judgment as agreed between the 

26 parties. Defendant further agrees that the judgment may be executed against property 

27 wherever it is held and it waives all rights to contest the enforcement of the judgment. 

28 Defendant consents to the entry of the forfeiture judgment into the Treasury Offset Program 

3 Def. Initials~ 
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1 and waives all notices of the Treasury Offset Program and all notices of offset. 

2 Defendant understands that the main plea agreement and this addendum embody the 

3 entire plea agreement between the parties and supersedes any other plea agreement, written 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
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20 
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24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

or oral. 

D~~iif ,7-~ 

Acknowledgement by Counsel: 

Date 

3/28/24 
Date 

4 

President 
Cambridge International Systems, Inc. 
Defendant 

Michelle L. Wasserman 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

Def. Initials~ 
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60 59 58 57 56 55 
2024 

April May June July August September 
Principle $1,672,102.23 $1,644,233.86 $1,616,365.49 $1,5,88,497.12 $1,560,628.75 $1,532,760.38 . $1,504,892.01 

Principle Payment 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 
Interest Payment 6,802.53 6,912.60 6,575.78 6,678.27 6,561.11 6,235.66 

Interest Rate 4.94% 4.94% 4.94% 4.94% 4.94% 4.94% 
I Std. Dev above rate 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 
I Std. Dev Below rate 4.63% 4.63% 4.63% 4.63% 4.63% 4.63% 

I Std. Dev above I Payment 7,226.67 7,343.63 6,985.78 7,094.69 6,970.22 6,624.45 

1 Std. Dev Below I Payment 6,378.50 6,481.68 6,165.89 6,261.96 6,152.10 5,846.96 

Total Payment 34,670.90 34,780.97 34,444.15 34,546.64 34,429.48 34,104.03 

High 35,095.04 35,212.00 34,854.15 34,963.06 34,838.59 34,492.82 
Low 34,246.87 34,350.05 34,034.26 34,130.33 34,020.47 33,715.33 
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54 53 52 51 50 49 48 47 

October November December Total January February March April May 
$1,477,023.64 $1,449,155.27 $1,421,286.90 $1,421,286.90 $1,393,418.53 $1,365,550.15 $1,337,681.78 $1,309,813.41 $1,281,945.04 

27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 250,815.33 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 
6,326.78 6,008.90 6,092.46 58,194.10 4,535.98 4,016.06 4,358.10 4,131.23 4,180.22 

4.94% 4.94% 4.94% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 
5.25% 5.25% 5.25% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 
4.63% 4.63% 4.63% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 

6,721.29 6,383.56 6,472.35 61,822.63 4,908.20 4,345.56 4,715.72 4,470.22 4,523.24 
5,932.38 5,634.34 5,712.67 54,566.48 4,163.85 3,686.63 4,000.56 3,792.32 3,837.28 

34,195.16 33,877.28 33,960.831 309,009.441 32,404.35 31,884.43 32,226.47 31,999.60 32,048.59 

34,589.66 34,251.93 34,340.72 312,637.96 32,776.57 32,213.93 32,584.09 32,338.59 32,391.61 
33,800.75 33,502.71 33,581.04 305,381.81 32,032.22 31,555.00 31,868.93 31,660.69 31,705.65 
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46 45 44 43 42 41 40 39 
2025 

June July August September October November December Total January 
$1,254,076.67 $1,226,208.30 $1,198,339.93 $1,170,471.56 $1,142,603.19 $1,114,734.82 $1,086,866.45 $1,086,866.45 $1,058,998.08 

27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 334,420.45 27,868.37 
3,959.10 4,002.33 3,913.39 3,700.89 3,735.51 3,528.76 3,557.63 47,619.20 2,820.72 

3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.05% 
4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 4.06% 3.36% 
3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 3.44% 2.74% 

4,283.96 4,330.76 4,234.53 4,004.57 4,042.05 3,818.31 3,849.57 51,526.69 3,105.19 
3,634.31 3,673.99 3,592.34 3,397.29 3,429.06 3,239.28 3,265.77 43,712.68 2,536.31 

31,827.47 31,870.71 31,781.76 31,569.26 31,603.88 31,397.13 31,426.oo I 3s2,039.65 I 30,689.09 

32,152.33 32,199.13 32,102.90 31,872.94 31,910.42 31,686.68 31,717.94 385,947.13 30,973.56 
31,502.68 31,542.36 31,460.71 31,265.66 31,297.43 31,107.65 31,134.14 378,133.13 30,404.68 
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38 37 36 35 34 33 32 31 30 29 
2026 

February March April May June July August September October November 
$1,031,129.71 $1,003,261.34 $975,392.97 $947,524.60 $919,656.23 $891,787.86 $863,919.49 $836,051.12 $808,182.74 $780,314.37 

27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 
2,482.11 2,676.06 2,519.64 2,531.41 2,379.66 2,386.76 2,314.43 2,169.69 2,169.78 2,029.71 

3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 3.05% 

3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 3.36% 
2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 2.74% 

2,732.40 2,945.95 2,773.74 2,786.71 2,619.64 2,627.47 2,547.85 2,388.50 2,388.61 2,234.40 
2,231.87 2,406.25 2,265.60 2,276.18 2,139.74 2,146.11 2,081.08 1,950.94 1,951.01 1,825.07 

30,350.48 30,544.43 30,388.01 30,399.78 30,248.03 30,255.13 30,182.80 30,038.06 30,038.15 29,898.08 

30,600.77 30,814.32 30,642.11 30,655.08 30,488.01 30,495.84 30,416.22 30,256.87 30,256.98 30,102.77 
30,100.24 30,274.62 30,133.97 30,144.55 30,008.11 30,014.48 29,949.45 29,819.31 29,819.38 29,693.44 
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28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 20 

2027 
December Total January February March April May Juoe July August 
$752,446.00 $752,446.00 $724,577.63 $696,709.26 $668,840.89 $640,972.52 $613,104.15 $585,235. 78 $557,367.41 $529,499.04 

27,868.37 334,420.45 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 
2,025.13 28,505.11 1,696.58 1,475.48 1,570.91 1,459.37 1,445.23 1,337.76 1,319.56 1,256.72 

3.05% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 
3.36% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 

2.74% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 
2,229.37 31,379.84 1,893.46 1,646.68 1,753.20 1,628.72 1,612.95 1,492.99 1,472.69 1,402.56 
1,820.94 25,631.09 1,499.75 1,304.31 1,388.66 1,290.06 1,277.56 1,182.56 1,166.47 1,110.92 

29,893.so I 362,92s.ss I 29,564.95 29,343.85 29,439.28 29,327.74 29,313.60 29,206.13 29,187.93 29,125.10 

30,097.74 365,800.28 29,761.83 29,515.05 29,621.57 29,497.09 29,481.32 29,361.36 29,341.06 29,270.93 
29,689.31 360,051.54 29,368.12 29,172.69 29,257.03 29,158.43 29,145.93 29,050.93 29,034.84 28,979.30 
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19 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 II 

September October November December Total January February March April May 
$501,630.67 $473,762.30 $445,893.93 $418,025.56 $418,025.56 $390,157.19 $362,288.82 $334,420.45 $306,552.08 $278,683.71 

27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 334,420.45 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 
1,155.33 1,131.05 1,033.72 1,005.38 15,887.09 942.54 822.89 816.87 729.68 691.20 

2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 
2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 
2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 

1,289.40 1,262.31 1,153.67 1,122.05 17,730.67 1,051.92 918.38 911.67 814.36 771.41 
1,021.30 999.83 913.80 888.74 14,043.97 833.19 727.43 722.10 645.03 611.01 

29,023.70 28,999.42 28,902.09 28,873.751 350,307.541 28,810.91 28,691.26 28,685.24 28,598.06 28,559.57 

29,157.77 29,130.68 29,022.04 28,990.42 352,151.11 28,920.29 28,786.75 28,780.04 28,682.73 28,639.78 
28,889.67 28,868.20 28,782.17 28,757.ll 348,464.41 28,701.56 28,595.80 28,590.47 28,513.40 28,479.38 
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10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 
2028 

June July August September October November December Total January February 
$250,815.33 $222,946.96 $195,078.59 $167,210.22 $139,341.85 $111,473.48 $83,605.11 $83,605.11 $55,736.74 $27,868.37 

27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 27,868.37 334,420.45 27,868.37 27,868.37 
608.07 565.53 502.69 425.65 377.02 304.04 251.34 7,037.52 188.51 113.50 
2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 2.65% 
2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 2.96% 
2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 2.34% 

678.63 631.15 561.02 475.04 420.77 339.32 280.51 7,854.18 210.38 126.67 
537.53 499.92 444.37 376.27 333.28 268.76 222.18 6,221.07 166.64 100.33 

28,476.44 28,433.90 28,371.06 28,294.02 28,245.39 28,172.41 2s,119.12 I 341,457.97 I 28,056.88 27,981.87 

28,547.00 28,499.52 28,429.40 28,343.41 28,289.14 28,207.69 28,148.88 342,274.62 28,078.75 27,995.04 
28,405.90 28,368.29 28,312.74 28,244.64 28,201.65 28,137.13 28,090.56 340,641.52 28,035.01 27,968.70 
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March 
$0.00 

27,868.37 
62.84 
2.65% 
2.96% 
2.34% 
70.13 
55.55 

27,931.21 

27,938.50 
27,923.92 

0 

April 
$0.00 $0.00 

2.65% 
2.96% 
2.34% 

4.92% 

2029 
?\Juii.eW\i\Y D i{Jiil.y ·.' ., •. •• •. : • ' \AiiM#// •. • ~i;pleR\b'ef ..• • Octj:,hili') • : .Ncivemher '. ' Di§ei:i,1,-.;;: . 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

4.92% 4.92% 4.92% 4.92% 4.92% 4.92% 4,92% 
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Total 
$0,00 

83,605.11 
364.84 

407.18 
322.52 

83,969~95] 

84,012.29 
83,927.63 

Total 

1,672,102.23 
157,607.87 

170,721.17 
144,497.81 

1,829,710.10 

1,842,823.40 
1,816,600.04 

., 


